
From: Holschbach, Andy - DATCP 
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 10:35 AM 
To: Demers, Gerald L - DNR 
Subject: FW: Cedarburg - R&R Quarry Groundwater Elevation Issue 
Attachments: DOC040119-04012019135423.pdf 
 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 
 
Hi Gerald, 
 
In review of the attached report provided by Friess Environmental Consulting dated February 28, 
2019,  the groundwater elevation  on MW-1 was at 813.28’ on December 29, 2018. 
 
This data indicates the groundwater elevation is already 3.28’ higher than the 810’ MSL,  the 
groundwater elevation established for  the Reclamation Plan and utilized for Low Hazard Waste 
Exemption permitting. 
 
I wanted to share this information as it certainly appears to have an impact on Low Hazard Exemption 
Waste permitting and placement of low hazard waste in regards to groundwater quality protection. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you regarding this matter and hope all is well with you. 
 
Thanks. 
 
Andy 
 
Andy Holschbach, Director 
Land & Water Management Department 
Ozaukee County 
121 W. Main Street, P.O. Box 994 
Port Washington, WI 53074 
Phone 262-284-8271 or 262-238-8271 
Fax 262-284-8367 

 
 
 

From: DJ Burns [mailto:djburns@drakecg.com]  

Sent: Monday, April 01, 2019 6:48 PM 
To: Andy Holschbach 

Cc: 'DJ Burns' 
Subject: Cedarburg - R&R Quarry Groundwater Elevation Issue 

 
Andy: 
 
Please see the attached correspondence from Friess Environmental Consulting, Inc.  to the DNR’s Gerald 
DeMers, P.E. dated 2/28/19. 
 



If you’ll recall, I became concerned about this project when I learned of the planned filling of the quarry 
with waste materials utilizing a low hazard solid waste exemption request process (which required 
approval of the DNR following their review of the “applicant”provided site information).   
 
As you are aware, the DNR’s Low Hazard Solid Waste Exemption approvals for a receiving facility/site 
can be revoked and each approval specifically states that, “The Department retains its jurisdiction to 
require the submittal of additional information or to modify or revoke this conditional grant of 
exemption if the Owners fail to comply with any condition or the project as proposed.”    The approval 
letters typically also state that, “The Department also retains its jurisdiction to modify or revoke this 
conditional grant of exemption if, in the Department’s opinion, circumstances or conditions change or if 
new information is found which would warrant such a modification or condition.”   
 
In addition, the Low Hazard Solid Waste Exemption approvals can also be revoked if, for instance, the 
entity that receives the exemption fails to comply with the “conditions” specified in each of the 
exemption approvals.  Most of the approvals I have reviewed indicate that the owner or its agent, “shall 
notify the Department when construction excavation activities for the site begin for the purpose of 
allowing Department personnel the opportunity to inspect soil excavation and soil management 
practices during active construction.  The appropriate inspection fees shall apply as provided in NR 
520.”  The approvals also typically state that the owner or its agent, “shall submit documentation to the 
Department within sixty (60) days after the conclusion of the work and disposal operations” and the 
documentation shall include at a minimum the following items: a) photographs showing the project and 
disposal site before, during and after placement of the excavated material, and; b) the total volume of 
material actually disposed.”   
 
Please be advised that I have repeatedly requested documentation from the Department over the past 
few years (documentation which I understood to have been a “condition” of many of the low hazard 
solid waste exemption approvals) but have not received the requested written or photographic 
documentation which would demonstrate that the applicable permit conditions are being adhered to. 
 
As regards the current conditions at the site, it seems noteworthy that the attached 2/28/19 
correspondence now provides empirical evidence obtained and provided by a professional engineer 
(P.E.) that the measured depth to water in MW-1 was determined by him to be 22.22 feet from the top 
of casing of that well and Table 3 of the letter then explicitly states that the “Groundwater Elevation” at 
MW-1 is 813.28 feet mean sea level (MSL).  
 
I would note that the expected post-reclamation elevation of the local groundwater table has been the 
subject of much debate and conjecture due to differing opinions and local knowledge of historical 
conditions (and even perhaps business-related interests that may have been better served by claiming 
that groundwater was not present within the quarry or was at a significant distance below the surface of 
the quarry).   
 
As you are aware, in  correspondence to the Town of Cedarburg dated June 18, 2012, Rick Frieseke, P.E. 
wrote that, “shallow groundwater is not present at the site.  The Owner of the site, who has worked this 
property for over 50 years, indicates that groundwater is below the depth that has been 
quarried.”  Available records indicate that portions of the R&R Quarry had extended to a depth of 
approximately 760 feet msl, so this correspondence and representation by Mr. Frieseke (a Professional 
Engineer licensed in the State of Wisconsin) appears to assert that no groundwater was present at the 
site above an elevation of 760 feet msl.  The recent groundwater measurement obtained by Frieseke at 



MW-1 (within the quarry) appears to be over 50 feet higher in elevation than the historical information 
that he has previously provided to the Town of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, and the Department and 
this information appears to have formed the basis for some of the Department’s earliest exemption 
approvals.      
 
We’d also note that in correspondence dating back to April 2012,  Ready Earth Consulting, LLC’s 
Professional Geologist (P.G.) Jason Bartley (who had previously worked for and with Frieseke) appears to 
have notified the Department that: a) the R&R Quarry had been conducting “reclamation” activities at 
the site for approximately the previous 7 years (we’d note that these reclamation activities since 2005 
had been conducted without benefit of the owner having previously received the required jurisdictional 
authority approved NR 135 Reclamation Plan), and b) “groundwater is expected to be present at an 
elevation of approximately 800 feet msl.”   
 
We’d note that Bartley’s estimated post-reclamation groundwater elevation of 800 feet is much higher 
(40 feet higher!) than the 760 feet that Frieseke told the Department and the County to expect, but the 
recent readings obtained by Frieseke indicate that even Bartley underestimated the actual  recorded 
December 2018 groundwater elevation by over 13 feet (as measured at MW-1).  We’d note that 
Bartley’s incorrect 800 foot msl elevation estimate may have formed the basis for the Department’s 
approval of some of the Department’s exemption approvals.  
 
In previous correspondence and discussions (some of which included former DNR Bureau of Waste and 
Materials Management Director Ann Coakley and other waste and remediation & redevelopment 
“technical” experts), the Department indicated that it was their belief that the groundwater elevation 
within the quarry following site reclamation activities would likely not exceed 810 feet msl.  As we 
discussed today, it would appear that the 813.28 foot msl elevation measured at MW-1 by professional 
engineer Rick Frieseke himself exceeded the Department’s expected groundwater elevation by over 3 
feet already, and the complete reclamation of the quarry has not even occurred as of yet.  Unless 
significant dewatering of the quarry were to occur, it is possible that future filling of the quarry (via 
reclamation) could drive the observed groundwater levels higher by 5, 10, 15 or more feet than the 
current 813.28 elevation observed in December 2018, which would put more water directly “in contact” 
with the low hazard waste materials that were put there (albeit which were approved by the 
Department presumably based on the professional engineer’s – Frieseke’s and the professional 
geologist’s-Bartley’s respective “representations” that groundwater would not be present above 760 
feet or above 800 feet).   
 
As you are aware, the Department has historically stated that it was never their intent to permit the 
placement of low hazard exempted solid waste materials in contact with water at a receiving site such 
as the R&R Quarry.  In fact, in Director Coakley’s September 25, 2012 letter to the Chair of the Ozaukee 
County Natural Resources Committee, Director Coakley stated the following, “With regard to possible 
impacts to groundwater quality and water supply wells from the placement of the soil, my staff have 
indicated that they have not seen evidence establishing that the soils are placed at an elevation where 
they would come in contact with groundwater.”  While I strongly disagreed with many of the items 
contained in Director Coakley’s letter, it appeared clear to me that “if” evidence was provided to the 
Department that Department-approved low hazard exempted solid waste materials were in fact placed 
at an elevation where they would come in contact (or be below the observed groundwater elevation 
within MW-1), then the DNR would be forced to take action to resolve this long-standing issue.  I’d note 
that over the past few years, a general consensus has developed whereby the Department does not 
believe that low hazard exempted solid waste materials should be placed within an area three (3) feet 



above an anticipated water table elevation (in this case, it would mean that no low hazard exempted 
solid waste materials should be allowed to be placed below 816.28 feet msl based on the December 
2018 reading, but  I’d also note that given this site’s unique geological setting, the future groundwater 
elevation may not even reach its highest elevation until well after reclamation activities have been 
completed and as such the Department should be extremely careful in determining what their opinion is 
on the future elevation of the post-reclamation water table.      
 
As previously discussed, my records indicate that in 2001, the quarry operator (Dick Charmoli) who had 
decades of experience working at this site and his consultant at that time, provided information to the 
Town of Cedarburg that the elevation of a then-proposed “future lake” at the quarry site would be 
expected to be situated at an elevation of approximately 830 feet mean sea level.  As such, the 
Department may want to consider establishing a new, anticipated future water table elevation of 830 
feet msl and restrict placement of any low hazard exempted solid waste materials at elevations below 
833 feet msl.   
 
I’d ask that you please forward a copy of this email to the current Chair of the Ozaukee County Natural 
Resources Committee as well as the County’s Corporation Counsel for their review. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this email.  I can be reached at (414) 881-0003. 
 
D.J. Burns 
N105 W7585 Chatham Street 
Cedarburg, WI 53012-3255 
  
 
 
 
   






















